
 Leelanau County Brownfield Redevelopment Authority (LCBRA) 

Meeting Date: Tuesday AUGUST 15, 2023 at 10:00 am  
Location:   Leelanau County Government Center 

 CALL TO ORDER & PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE

 ROLL CALL

 PUBLIC COMMENT

 DIRECTOR COMMENTS

 CONSIDERATION OF AGENDA

 CONFLICT OF INTEREST

 CONSIDERATION OF MINUTES – JULY 18, 2023 pgs 2-5

 CONSENT AGENDA

Items of a routine nature to be voted on with one motion ‐ no discussion. Upon request, members may remove any item and 
place elsewhere on the agenda, with no vote of the commission. Members will vote on remaining items on the Consent 
Agenda, after the item removed has been placed elsewhere on the agenda. 

a. Fishbeck – General Consulting and TIF Management pgs 6‐7
b. Fishbeck – EPA Assessment Grant pgs 8‐11

 OLD BUSINESS

 NEW BUSINESS
1. Consideration – TIF Repayment to Courthouse Redevelopment Group (CRG)  pgs 12-27
2. Update – Brownfield 2023 National Conference (Allen, Eftaxiadis, Galla)

 FINANCIALS
1. Claims & Accounts $ 7,094.75  pgs 28-40
2. Post Audit, Budget Amendments, Transfers

 CORRESPONDENCE/COMMUNICATION ITEMS

 PUBLIC COMMENT

 DIRECTOR COMMENTS

 MEMBER / CHAIRPERSON COMMENTS

 ADJOURN

Members 
Dan Heinz, Chairman 
Rick Foster, Vice‐Chair 

John Arens‐Sect/Treasurer 
Deborah Allen 
Gwenne Allgaier 
T. Eftaxiadis
David King

Director 
Trudy Galla 

Page 1 of 40



 

LC‐BRA 7‐18‐23 Minutes    pg. 1 
 

A regular meeting of the Leelanau County Brownfield Redevelopment Authority (LCBRA) was 
held on Tuesday, July 18, 2023 at the Leelanau County Government Center. 
 
CALL TO ORDER 
Meeting was called to order at 10:01 a.m. by Chairman who led the Pledge of Allegiance. 
 
ROLL CALL 
Members Present: D. Heinz, D. Allen, G. Allgaier, J. Arens, D. King, R. Foster, T. Eftaxiadis 
 
Members absent: None 
  
Staff:    T. Galla, Director  
 
Public:   J. Hawkins, L. Mawby 
 
PUBLIC COMMENT   
Larry Mawby, encouraged favorable action on item 1, New Business, a. and b. 
 
DIRECTOR COMMENTS - None. 
 
CONSIDERATION OF AGENDA 
   
Motion by Foster, seconded by Allen, to accept the agenda as presented.  Motion carried 7-0. 
 
CONFLICT OF INTEREST – None. 
 
CONSIDERATION OF JUNE 20, 2023 MINUTES 
 
 Motion by Allgaier, seconded by Foster, to approve the minutes as presented.  Motion carried 7-0. 
 
CONSENT AGENDA  
a.  Fishbeck – General Consulting and TIF Management 
b.  Fishbeck – EPA Assessment Grant 
 
Motion by Foster, second by Allgaier, to accept the consent agenda as presented.  Motion carried 7-0. 
 
OLD BUSINESS – None. 
 
NEW BUSINESS 
Letters of support for Rural Readiness Grant applications 
a) Leelanau County application 
 
Motion by Allgaier, seconded by Foster to approve the letter of support for submittal of the Rural 
Readiness Grant county application. Motion carried 7-0. 
 
b) Peninsula Housing application 
Motion by King, seconded by Allgaier, to approve the letter of support for Peninsula Housing for 
submittal of the grant. Motion carried 7-0. 
 

Page 2 of 40



 

LC‐BRA 7‐18‐23 Minutes    pg. 2 
 

c) Update to changes to Act 381 – Jeff Hawkins, Fishbeck 
Hawkins passed out a flyer on changes to Act 381 for new brownfield incentives for housing 
development. He put together a flyer that explains the basic changes.  The governor and her 
administration are very interested in creating more housing.  Michigan is about 75,000 units short in the 
state as far as the need.  Several different groups have been working to try and pass changes to assist with 
the number of units being constructed. Several amendments worked through the house and senate, but are 
not passed by the governor yet. It is tie-barred to another bill with other changes to act 381.  Basically, the 
amendment allows for state and local tax increment revenues to go towards housing development 
activities. When they classify a site as being a brownfield, properties that involve housing can be 
considered eligible for a brownfield plan. This has allowed them to expand the eligible activities that 
could be reimbursed under a brownfield plan.  If you are not a core community, you can’t do those 
expanded eligible activities. This would expand that for infrastructure to support housing (gas, electric, 
sewer, etc.).  Those might be eligible costs, including demolition and site preparation that support 
housing.  There is a financing gap for cost of construction and selling price.  In Maple City, we tried to 
cover the gap but now it would be allowed without using the land bank. There are acquisition costs to 
factor in as well.  The majority of these housing eligible activities are for housing up to 120% of Area 
Median Income (AMI), and that’s probably a pretty high number in Leelanau County.   
 
Payments in lieu of taxes and even the fee could potentially be captured through a brownfield plan. 
Administrative cost may be bumped from $100,000.00 annually to $125,000.00 annually.  In the past, any 
projects proposed for housing up to 120% AMI which would pursue capture of school taxes had to do an 
Act 381 work plan. Now, school taxes captured through a brownfield plan would be reviewed by 
Michigan State Housing Development Authority (MSHDA) which changes the review body at state level. 
The amendment allows removal of lead, asbestos, mold and demolition of up to $250,000.00 and they can 
capture school taxes to allow for this.  Also, there is an opportunity in the amendment, that if there is no 
income subsidy associated with market rate housing, they can go over school taxes to pay for all of these 
without an Act 381 work plan. This is up to 120% AMI and doing a school tax, then taking the work plan 
to MSHDA for review, but if you are doing it for market rate housing and capture school tax, then you 
don’t need a work plan approved through MSHDA. The process to go through MSHDA for approval of 
an Act 381 work plan has not been drafted yet. Within 30 days, they should have some webinars in place 
so that they will understand what this looks like. Foster asked if they are increasing staff at MSHDA to 
handle all of this? Hawkins said they might be considering that. They already have a relationship with 
Environment, Great Lakes, and Energy (EGLE) and two staff members that work with MSHDA. 
Hopefully that will continue. They have received calls from developers already who will be interested in 
taking advantage of these tools. 
   
FINANCIALS 
 
Claims & Accounts   
 
Motion by Allgaier, seconded by King, to approve Claims & Accounts in the amount of $8,188.59.  
Motion carried 7-0. 
 
Heinz stated that last month he brought up a payment around $6,000.00 and the reimbursement from the 
EPA grant.  Galla informed him after each meeting, she submits electronically the request to the 
Environmental Protection Agency (EPA) and they pay back promptly.  They reimburse quickly. 
 
Post Audit, Budget Amendments, Transfers – None. 
 
CORRESPONDENCE/COMMUNICATION ITEMS - None.  
 

Page 3 of 40



 

LC‐BRA 7‐18‐23 Minutes    pg. 3 
 

PUBLIC COMMENT   
Mawby thanked members.  
 
DIRECTOR COMMENTS   
Galla gave an update on the Bluebird project. Galla, Hawkins and Heinz met with Mr. Telgard, Bluebird 
owner, and township supervisor to see where the project stands and to introduce the idea to the supervisor 
that the Telgard’s will be looking for a brownfield plan for the site. They met inside the Bluebird, and 
they talked about what has already been done and what needs to be done. Galla said she would keep her 
eyes on any funding that could help offset the costs. They have run into some issues as far as what they 
planned on doing and splitting the parcels. There are certain requirements when splitting the parcels.  
 
Hawkins said they have already completed some of the due diligence that they were working on before 
with the hazardous materials on site. The Telgard’s mentioned there were a couple tanks filled in with 
concrete on the site. A brownfield plan for the site, as part of the work order that is approved, was 
initiated that but they had to do some other work on the site. They anticipate looking at their schedule for 
deconstruction and construction on that site, hopefully they have a brownfield plan to bring before you 
soon. They have to have the township board review it and adopt it, as well.  Then it goes on to the Board 
of Commissioners for a public hearing and approval. Heinz asked if all of that is under a time frame by 
end of September as he wants to do demolition. Hawkins replied yes, he may proceed with asbestos 
abatement because it has to be done before demolition.  They need to get in front of the township board, 
sooner than later.   
 
Heinz asked for confirmation that there was already a brownfield plan adopted for Bluebird? Hawkins 
said it is not done yet. The first step was site eligibility and a brownfield plan, they didn’t anticipate 
anything else to be done.  Once they started, they realized they needed more things done - for instance, 
they had a demolition estimate but not asbestos so there were elements that needed to be evaluated and 
established. So that’s why they shifted and now that they have that data, they can go back to developing 
the brownfield plan.   
 
Allgaier asked if legislation is passed? Hawkins said if passed they can use school taxes for pretty much 
everything they are talking about.  Whether you do a $50,000.00 or a $10 million project, they had to go 
through same process for using school taxes. It is proposed in amendments that they put an automatic 
ceiling of $250,000.00 for a smaller project so they don’t have to go through that approval process with 
the state.  The risk you have is that the plan doesn’t get approved and you have incurred those expenses.  
In northern Michigan, construction window is narrower than other parts of the state.  Hawkins would like 
to try and get things rolling.   
 
Eftaxiadis asked Hawkins about support for this project. Hawkins said the intent was just to present the 
project so they knew what was going on.  Years ago, they did the brownfield plan for the Leland site. 
There are three generations on the Bluebird property so their intent is to continue the family tradition with 
the Bluebird. Looking at their taxes, they’ve paid over three generations worth and they pay a substantial 
number of Residential Equivalent Unit’s (REU) on the sewer system which supports that sewer system.   
 
Eftaxiadis asked Hawkins if he has seen anything in the amendments concerning the application of the 
$250,000.00 capped for demolition as related to becoming a pre-approved activity? Any discussion about 
looking back for one year?  Hawkins replied that he was not aware of anything.  It is a pretty loose 
interpretation.  Eftaxiadis always thought that but it was in the policy for a one-year timeframe. Hawkins 
answered that policy is from Michigan Economic Development Corporation (MEDC) when they were in 
the position to make the review/approval. Now that this is pre-approved, they don’t need to ask them for 
approval.    
 

Page 4 of 40



 

LC‐BRA 7‐18‐23 Minutes    pg. 4 
 

Heinz asked Galla about the Kyle Evans property in Northport, the former hospital.  She said the 
Leelanau County Land Bank Authority was awarded a $751,000.00 grant to do demolition and help that 
project along.  A brownfield plan on that site may be considered.  The funds from the state go a long way 
for them to get the property ready for development. 
 
MEMBER / CHAIRPERSON COMMENTS  
Eftaxiadis said in regard to the amendments to Act 381, we may want to consider the projects we do.  
Tomorrow, MEDC and EGLE will have a webinar and they will go into these changes. He expects there 
will be a lot of questions on implementation. He didn’t know if there was still time to register for it.   
 
King asked Hawkins if Fishbeck could differentiate the information on the memos for the consent agenda.  
As an example, pages 9-10 of the Bluebird memo mention everything that has happened with a small 
update that is new at the very end. Perhaps italicize or use a different way to highlight the new 
information so it is easier to locate the update.  
 
Heinz asked if this document goes to EPA? Galla replied, no.  Hawkins said it is tied to invoices for that 
period so information is related to what you are approving.  Hawkins appreciated the request. He wanted 
to remind them of what happened on projects but will differentiate the new information in the future. 
 
ADJOURN 
Motion by Foster, seconded by Allgaier to adjourn. 
Meeting adjourned at 10:37 am.  
 
 
 

Page 5 of 40



 
 

Memo 
TO: Trudy J. Galla, AICP, Director – Leelanau County Brownfield Redevelopment Authority 

FROM: Therese Searles and Jeff Hawkins 

DATE: August 15, 2023   

RE: General Consulting and TIR Management Monthly Updates and Invoices  

This memorandum serves to provide information regarding invoices and updates that are being presented to the 
Leelanau County Brownfield Redevelopment Authority (LCBRA) for services rendered on various projects related 
to General Environmental Consulting activities. 

Please find attached several items for your consideration: 

1. General Services (W.O. #2-GS) 

Update:  

Fishbeck has entered into an agreement of service with the LCBRA for environmental consulting services related 
to the County’s FY22 EPA Assessment Grant. Applicable to this Agreement, Work Order Number 2-GS, an overall 
general services work order, dated April 18, 2023, was approved at the April LCBRA regular meeting.  Activities 
subject to this work order may include assistance with existing Brownfield Plans, new project communications, 
evaluating new State reporting requirements, and other project assistance as needed. Activities included in this 
month’s invoice for consideration involved discussions to prepare work orders and a Township Brownfield 101 
Presentation. 

Project Invoices for Consideration:  

Invoice #426199 ($88.50) 

2. 2023 Tax Increment Tracking and Annual Reporting (W.O. #1-GS) 

Update: 

Fishbeck has established a tax increment financing (TIF) tracking system for the LCBRA for its existing Brownfield 
Plans. The LCBRA has engaged Fishbeck to manage the tracking of tax increment collection and reimbursement 
associated with the LCBRA’s existing brownfield plans for 2023 by updating and sending out Statement of Account 
twice a year to coincide with tax collection periods. Reimbursement Analysis will also be updated for the LCBRA 
twice a year. As we have assisted in previous years, Fishbeck will also assist the LCBRA with Annual Reporting 
through the MEDC online portal in August of 2023. Fishbeck tracks the collection of TIR received on a continual 
basis as those checks come in and are forwarded on by Trudy Galla. Activities included in this month’s invoice were 
related to review of TIF received, review of Reimbursement Analyses, and drafting the MEDC Annual Report.  

Project Invoices for Consideration:  

Invoice #426200 ($605.00) 

Page 6 of 40



Leelanau County Brownfield Redevelopment Authority

General Services

Budget and Cost Summary

8/6/2023

Activity  Budget Estimates 

Project W.O. Site/Phase Total Invoice No. Invoice Date Total Invoiced Amount

230507 1-GS Tax Increment Tracking and Annual Reporting 4,900.00$               Invoice Total 421222 3/13/2023 333.75$                              

422202 4/5/2023 63.75$                              

230507 5/8/2023 283.50$                             

424163 6/8/2023 126.00$                             

425212 7/6/2023 892.00$                             

426200* 8/2/2023 605.00$                            

Project Subtotal 2,304.00$                          Project Subtotal Remaining 2,596.00$           

Invoice Breakdown

Statement of Account and Reimbursement Analysis 

Preparation 3,700.00$               Stmt of Acct/RA 421222 3/13/2023 333.75$                             

422202 4/5/2023 63.75$                              

423195 5/8/2023 147.00$                             

424163 6/8/2023 126.00$                             

425212 7/6/2023 892.00$                             

426200 8/2/2023 563.00$                             

Phase Subtotal 2,125.50$                          Phase Subtotal Remaining 1,574.50$           

Annual Reporting 1,200.00$               423195 5/8/2023 136.50$                             

426200 8/2/2023 42.00$                              

Phase Subtotal 178.50$                             Phase Subtotal Remaining 1,021.50$           

230894 2-GS General Consulting 6,000.00$               Invoice Total 423194 5/4/2023 59.00$                               

425213 7/6/2023 59.00$                              

426199* 8/2/2023 88.50$                              

Project Subtotal 206.50$                             Project Subtotal 5,793.50$           

Approved Project Budgets Subtotal 10,900.00$             Total Expended 2,510.50$                          Budgets Remaining 8,389.50$           

Estimated Budget Remaining -$                        

Check 10,900.00$         

Project Budgets Returned 

Available Budget Remaining 8,389.50$               

Notes:

 
 

Number

Project 

Complete
 Total 

 Actual  Project Budget Remaining 

Page 7 of 40



 
 

Memo 
TO: Trudy J. Galla, AICP, Director – Leelanau County Brownfield Redevelopment Authority  

FROM: Therese Searles and Jeff Hawkins 

DATE: August 15, 2023   

RE: FY22 EPA Grant Updates and Invoices 

This memorandum serves to provide information regarding updates and invoices that are being presented to the 
Leelanau County Brownfield Redevelopment Authority (LCBRA) for activities and services rendered on various 
projects related to the EPA Brownfield Assessment Grant (4B-00E03213-0). 

 

1.  QAPP 
Project No: 230506 – W.O. # 1 

Update: 

Preparation of the QAPP is complete and has been submitted to and approved by the USEPA. QAPP self-
certification was found to be complete and satisfactory on May 8, 2023. This activity is complete. There are no 
further invoices for consideration. 

Project Invoices for Consideration: 

N/A 
 
2. Community Outreach and Programmatic 
Project No: 230505 – W.O. # 2 

Update: 

Programmatic activities relate to preparing work orders, preparing meeting materials, setting up/inputting ACRES 
information, and communications with the Director of the LCBRA regarding implementing the grant activities. 
Activities included in this month’s invoice for consideration include preparing meeting materials, preparing the 
quarterly report, and inputting updated project information into ACRES. 

Project Invoices for Consideration: 

Invoice #426201 ($989.25). 

 

3. Bluebird Redevelopment Project - 102 & 103 E. River St. and 101 E. Main St., Leland, MI 
Project No: 230504 – W.O. # 3 

Update: 

Page 8 of 40



Memo – FY 22 EPA Grant Updates and Invoices 
July 18, 2023  Fishbeck | Page 2 

 

Z:\2023\230505\WORK\MEETINGS\AUGUST 15, 2023 MEETING MATERIALS\ME_LCBRA_FY22 EPA GRANT UPDATES AND INVOICES_2023_0815.DOCX 

Skip (Daryl) and Lynn Telgard submitted a project application to the LCBRA for their Bluebird Redevelopment 
Project in Leland. The Telgards are the 3rd generation to run the Bluebird restaurant and tavern, founded in 1927, 
situated one block from Fishtown and serving both locals and tourists. Historically, the property was used for the 
production of charcoal for a nearby iron works in the 1800s. The property is currently developed as two 
restaurants, one storage facility, one retail store, and associated parking. The property at 101 S Main Street was 
formerly used as a gas station, with a leaking underground storage tank (Facility ID 00036063) which has since 
been closed. The developer intends to demolish the current Bluebird building as it is deteriorating, including a 
failing roof, ventilation system, and windows. In addition to its deteriorating status, many code updates have 
occurred since its original construction and the building has been determined to be functionally obsolete by the 
local assessor. The Bluebird will be rebuilt as a smaller restaurant with a rentable commercial space, occupying 
less land and located closer to the river. The owners also worked with EGLE through its permitting process to 
stabilize the riverbank by repairing a seawall. Private investment is anticipated at $3,000,000, with the creation of 
25 jobs anticipated. The developers have requested support from the LCBRA through the preparation of a 
brownfield plan to allow for the reimbursement of eligible costs (work order #3), which was approved by the 
LCBRA on February 21, 2023.  A petroleum eligibility determination was received from EGLE for the use of 
petroleum grant funds on March 16, 2023 and EPA has concurred with the LCBRA’s eligibility demonstration for 
the use of hazardous substance grant funds as of March 22, 2023. The assessor prepared an affidavit of functional 
obsolescence for the property.  The Telgards have requested additional support from the LCBRA to include a 
Phase I ESA, pre-demolition asbestos surveys for both structures on the property, and a conceptual budget for a 
Phase II ESA, if needed. The LCBRA approved an amended work order (WO#3, Amendment No. 1) on April 18, 
2023. EPA accepted the HASP and approved the SAP on May 18, 2023. The asbestos survey activities are 
complete and reports have been issued. The Phase I ESA is complete and identified one Recognized 
Environmental Condition (REC) pertaining to remaining tank(s) closed in place and the lack of assessment to 
determine whether impacts to the subject property exist as a result of these tank(s). Fishbeck met with the USEPA 
to determine if an additional funding source could be utilized to conduct a Ground Penetrating Radar (GPR) 
survey utilizing USEPA field services. It was determined that it would be most appropriate to utilize the LCBRA’s 
EPA Assessment Grant funds to conduct further assessment. The field work for the GPR survey has been 
completed and the report is being prepared. Preparation of the Brownfield Plan is underway. Also, a brownfield 
redevelopment 101 presentation is scheduled for August 14th with Leland Township in preparation of the Bluebird 
Brownfield Plan being considered for support in the near future. 

Project Invoices for Consideration: 

Invoice #426202 ($2,315.50). 
 
4. Centerville Township Dump – Centerville Township, MI 
Project No: 231190 – W.O. # 4 

Update: 

Centerville Township owns a 14-acre parcel of land that is a closed Township dump site located on Gatzke Road in 
Centerville Township. There is little information known regarding operation of the dump with respect to years in 
operation, geographic boundaries, specific materials dumped on the site, etc. Based on local knowledge, the 
dump is believed to have closed in the mid-1970s or earlier. Centerville Township is evaluating future plans for 
the site including the potential to redevelop the site for reuse as a public park or selling the property to fund 
other Township needs. Centerville Township is seeking funding support through the Leelanau County Brownfield 
Redevelopment Authority (LCBRA) to conduct assessment of the property to determine appropriate reuse options 
for the property and identify what activities may be needed to safely reuse the site. The LCBRA approved funding 
a Phase I ESA at the June LCBRA meeting to assist with understanding the historical context and geographic 
boundaries of the former dump site. Completion of the Phase I ESA will also inform the scope of subsequent 

Page 9 of 40



Memo – FY 22 EPA Grant Updates and Invoices 
July 18, 2023  Fishbeck | Page 3 

 

Z:\2023\230505\WORK\MEETINGS\AUGUST 15, 2023 MEETING MATERIALS\ME_LCBRA_FY22 EPA GRANT UPDATES AND INVOICES_2023_0815.DOCX 

assessment needed based on any Recognized Environmental Conditions (RECs) that may be identified in the 
Phase I ESA. An Eligibility Demonstration was prepared and submitted to the USEPA on June 29, 2023. Eligibility 
was confirmed on July 12, 2023. The Phase I ESA is underway. 

Project Invoices for Consideration: 

Invoice #426203 ($2,802.00). 
 
5. Peninsula Housing – 980 Herman Road, Suttons Bay, MI 
Project No: 231191 – W.O. # 5 

Update: 

Peninsula Housing, a Michigan non-profit Corporation, is redeveloping an over 10-acre old farmstead with a 
house, barn, and other outbuildings located in Suttons Bay, Michigan. The existing buildings are unusable and 
need to be demolished for redevelopment plans. There is known lead-based paint in the house. The house and 
other structures have the potential to contain asbestos, which needs to be determined prior to demolition.  

Peninsula Housing proposes to develop up to 80 housing units on the site in a mix of rental an owner-occupied 
apartments, duplexes, etc. beginning in 2024/2025. Current zoning allows two-story, multi-family development at 
a density of 8 units/acres as special land use. Redevelopment is anticipated to be completed by 2028. 

Peninsula Housing is seeking funding support from the Leelanau County Brownfield Redevelopment Authority 
(LCBRA) for the completion of a Pre-Demolition Hazardous Materials Inspection, inclusive of an asbestos survey 
and universal waste inventory which the LCBRA approved at the June LCBRA meeting. Some assessment work has 
already been completed on the property. Since there is already knowledge of lead-based paint, no further scope 
of work related to a lead assessment is proposed. There is also knowledge of lead and arsenic in soil, and a 
Baseline Environmental Assessment (BEA) has already been completed.  

There is potential for Peninsula Housing to request grant funding assistance for cleanup planning and/or the 
preparation of a Brownfield Plan to reimburse certain eligible brownfield costs. Based on the anticipated 
redevelopment, there are expected brownfield eligible activities that may include lead and asbestos abatement, 
building and site demolition, and potentially soil management activities. Other funding sources are being sought 
to leverage different portions of the project. The outcome of any other fundings source requests used to support 
the project and results of the Pre-Demolition Hazardous Materials Inspection will inform the decision to consider 
preparation of a Brownfield Plan. 

An Eligibility Demonstration was prepared and submitted to the USEPA on June 29, 2023. Eligibility was  confirmed 
on July 11, 2023. Fishbeck prepared the Health and Safety Plan (HASP), which was accepted, and Sampling and 
Analysis Plan (SAP), which was approved by the EPA on August 2, 2023. The field work for the Pre-Demolition HMI 
is scheduled for August 23-25,2023. 

Project Invoices for Consideration: 

Invoice #426204 ($294.50). 
 

Page 10 of 40



Leelanau County Brownfield Redevelopment Authority

FY22 U.S. EPA Brownfield Assessment Grant

Budget and Cost Summary

08/06/2023

Activity  Budget Estimates 

Project W.O. Site/Phase Total Invoice No. Invoice Date Total Invoiced Amount
Initial Grant Award 250,000.00$            

County 4 Personnel 4,000.00$                -$                                    

County 4 Travel 3,000.00$                BF Conference Aug. 2022 1,469.17$                                    

County 4 Supplies -$                         -$                                    

County 4 Other -$                         -$                                    

County Subtotal 7,000.00$                County Subtotal 1,469.17$                           County Subtotal

Contractual - Fishbeck 243,000.00$            -$                                    -$                     

230506 1 2 QAPP 3,000.00$                Invoice Total 423193 5/4/2023 3,000.00$                            

Project Subtotal 3,000.00$                           Project Subtotal Remaining -$                     

230505 2 4 Community Outreach and Programmatic 6,000.00$                Invoice Total 421223 3/13/2023 42.50$                                 

422203 4/5/2023 590.00$                              

423196 5/4/2023 1,315.25$                           

424161 6/8/2023 660.25$                              

425211 7/6/2023 793.50$                              

426201* 8/2/2023 989.25$                             

Project Subtotal 4,390.75$                           Project Subtotal Remaining 1,609.25$            

230504 3 1,2,3 Bluebird Redevelopment Project 35,300.00$              Invoice Total 421224 3/13/2023 127.50$                               

422204 4/5/2023 1,057.20$                           

423197 5/4/2023 1,458.50$                           

424160 6/8/2023 8,661.32$                           

425223 7/6/2023 5,988.89$                           

426202* 8/2/2023 2,315.50$                          

Project Subtotal 19,608.91$                         Project Subtotal Remaining 15,691.09$          

Invoice Breakdown

3 3 Brownfield Plan 5,000.00$                Brownfield Plan 421224 3/13/2023 127.50$                               

  422204 4/5/2023 1,057.20$                            

423197 5/4/2023 193.50$                              

424160 6/8/2023 600.25$                              

425223 7/6/2023 195.00$                              

426202 8/2/2023 841.50$                              

Phase Subtotal 3,014.95$                           Phase Subtotal Remaining 1,985.05$            

3-A# 1 1 Phase I ESA 3,000.00$                Phase I ESA 423197 5/4/2023 1,176.50$                           

424160 6/8/2023 1,823.50$                           

Phase Subtotal 3,000.00$                           Phase Subtotal Remaining -$                     

 3-A# 1 2 Pre-Demolition Asbestos Survey 12,000.00$              Asbestos Survey 423197 5/4/2023 88.50$                                 

424160 6/8/2023 6,237.57$                           

425223 7/6/2023 5,617.89$                           

  Phase Subtotal 11,943.96$                         Phase Subtotal Remaining 56.04$                 

Invoice Breakdown
3-A# 1 2 Phase II ESA (Conceptual) 15,300.00$              Phase II ESA 425233 7/6/2023 176.00$                              

426202 8/2/2023 1,474.00$                           
Phase Subtotal 1,650.00$                           Phase Subtotal Remaining 13,650.00$          

231190 4 1 Centerville Township Dump Site 3,000.00$                Invoice Total 425224 7/6/2023 198.00$                              

426203* 8/2/2023 2,802.00$                          

Project Subtotal 3,000.00$                           Project Subtotal Remaining -$                     

1 Phase I ESA 3,000.00$                Invoice Breakdown

Phase I ESA 425224 7/6/2023 198.00$                              

426203 8/2/2023 2,802.00$                           

Phase Subtotal 3,000.00$                           Phase Subtotal Remaining -$                     

231191 5 2 Peninsula Housing-980 Herman Rd, Suttons Bay 13,100.00$              Invoice Total 425225 7/6/2023 257.00$                               

426204* 8/2/2023 294.50$                             

Project Subtotal 551.50$                              Project Subtotal Remaining 12,548.50$          

Invoice Breakdown

  2 Pre-Demolition HMI 13,100.00$              525225 7/6/2023 257.00$                               

426,204.00         8/2/2023 294.50$                               

Phase Subtotal 551.50$                              Phase Subtotal Remaining 12,548.50$          

 

 

Approved Project Budgets Subtotal 60,400.00$              Invoice Total 30,551.16$                         Budgets Remaining 29,848.84$          

Estimated Contractual Budget Remaining 182,600.00$            212,448.84$                       

Check 243,000.00$        

Project Budgets Returned 

-$                         

Available Contractual Budget Remaining 182,600.00$            

Notes:

 
 

 Actual Contractual Budget Remaining 

and un-invoiced 

Grant 

Task

Number

Project 

Complete
 Total 

 Actual  Project Budget Remaining 

Page 11 of 40



Page 12 of 40



 LCBRA Approved Minutes 11-19-19 
 

A regular meeting of the Leelanau County Brownfield Redevelopment Authority was held on 
Tuesday November 19, 2019 at the Government Center. 
 
CALL TO ORDER:  Meeting called to order by Chair Egan at 10:20 am, who led the Pledge of 
Allegiance. 
 
Roll Call:   K. Egan, J. Arens, D. Bushey, R. Foster, R. Harmson, C. Janik, P. Soutas-Little 
 
Staff:    T. Galla 
 
Public: J. Hawkins 
 
CONSIDERATION OF AGENDA  
Motion by Foster, seconded by Janik to approve the agenda as presented.  Carried 7-0. 
 
CONFLICT OF INTEREST - None 
 
CONSIDERATION OF 9-17-19 MIUTES 
Motion by Harmson, seconded by Janik to accept the minutes as presented. Carried 7-0. 
 
PUBLIC COMMENT – None 
 
DIRECTOR COMMENTS 
Galla reported she and Egan were all set for the Brownfield 2019 conference in Los Angeles.  Egan 
received a scholarship to cover lodging and the registration.  Egan noted she will not be in attendance at 
the December LCBRA meeting. 
 
CONSENT AGENDA 
Motion by Soutas-Little, seconded by Harmson to accept the consent agenda, as presented.  Carried 7-
0. 
 
OLD BUSINESS 
Update on Tax Increment Financing (TIF) reimbursement request, and record keeping 
Hawkins said there was a motion last month to accept the payment request from Courthouse 
Redevelopment Group (CRG/Ross Satterwhite) for reimbursement of $38,862.50 which was 50% of the 
20% match required for the EPA Revolving Loan Fund (RLF) that was used at the former Government 
center site.  Last meeting you approved that request, subject to availability of TIF.  In our conversations, 
Galla asked for a memo talking about that request.  It is important to go back in history and look at it and 
the expected TIF from the buildout plan.   
 
Soutas-Little said all properties have been sold.  Hawkins said that is progress but we have not seen 
buildings being built yet and that is really where tax increment takes off to generate enough to pay for 
outstanding obligations on this brownfield plan.  The gist of it is current tax capture is approximately 
$30,000 annually on that property based on taxes being paid on the lots.  When it comes to the 
development reimbursement agreement there is a pecking order of when and how you can use the tax 
generated on the project.  First – debts, 2nd – administration costs, and 3rd is developer’s cost.  In this case, 
you have not taken out anything for administration.  Any TIF that is available should go toward annual 

Page 13 of 40

TGalla
Highlight



 LCBRA Approved Minutes 11-19-19 
 

state EGLE payment of $42,953.28.  So, you are really not able to cover your obligations with what you 
are capturing.  Based on policies you have in place, available TIF, and progress made on site with regard 
to redevelopment, the response back to CRG would be that you accepted their request for reimbursement 
and approved that request, but you can not pay it until your obligations have been met and you have 
available TIF.  In the schedule that was conceived, the 1st payment was going to be around 2017 and the 
schedule was based on a lot of assumptions.   However, there is not enough tax increment being 
generated. We anticipated in 2019 on a partial buildout on the site, it would generate about $66,000 in TIF 
and we are only about half of that. We have a long way to go.   
 
Soutas-Little asked if CRG participated in those projections and Hawkins said yes, they provided a 
proposed buildout schedule.  Soutas-Little asked what they expected the first year.  Hawkins said he 
thought it was 3 or 4 homes in 2018-2019 and a few homes after that.  Soutas-Little said it was not just 
the sale of the lots and Hawkins concurred.  The sale of the lots was not going to create a lot, it was the 
building of the homes. 
 
Egan said the tax increment for 2020 won’t change from 2019 as it is based on what is on the property for 
Dec. of 2019.  So, we have another year of this same amount coming in.   
 
Egan said there was no action needed.  Response back to CRG could be sharing of this memo showing we 
can not reimburse at this time.  Hawkins read last paragraph of memo. 
 
Egan said we could request the Director send the last paragraph or give more information?  Soutas-Little 
suggested adding in to the memo that the projections from them for TIF is not there.  Projection was 
based on number of homes that were to be built by now.   
 
Janik asked if the documents had a clause that they had to build homes within a number of years. Galla 
said it may be in their association documents.   
 
Janik talked to Steve Christensen a while ago and reminded him that once development starts the dirt goes 
on the county parcel.   
 
Arens commented on Soutas-Little point, and agreed we need to mention that delay is not county 
responsibility, we are waiting for something to happen there.   
 
Egan suggested adding ‘provided projections…’ 
 
Arens asked why there is a delay.  Soutas-Little said Satterwhite didn’t know why owners have not started 
building yet.  Arens asked when they would get started.  Janik stated Satterwhite fulfilled his part by 
selling the lots.  Hawkins said the availability of builders may be a problem.   
 
Motion by Janik to authorize Galla to work with consultant Jeff Hawkins and give CRG, Ross 
Satterwhite the documentation in response to his request. Seconded by Harmson.  Carried 7-0. 
 
New Business 

1. Work Order Request #22 
Hawkins reported that Galla asked for a work order addressing general services which would go through 
the end of 2021.  This doesn’t necessarily address the existing contract.   Hawkins said the Work Order 

Page 14 of 40

TGalla
Highlight



Page 15 of 40



Page 16 of 40



Page 17 of 40



Page 18 of 40



Page 19 of 40



Page 20 of 40



Page 21 of 40



Page 22 of 40



Attachment “A”  

Property Legal Description 

Units 1,2,3,4,and 6, Rivertown Leland Condominium, a condominium, according to the Master Deed 
recorded in Liber 1053, Pages 308 thru 377, Leelanau County Records, and designated as Leelanau 
County Condominium Subdivision Plan No. 156, together with rights in general common elements 
and limited common elements as set forth in the above referenced Master Deed and as described in Act 
59 of Public Acts of 1978, as amended; 

AND 

All land lying Westerly of Grand Avenue within Rivertown Cottages Condominium, a condominium 
according to the Master Deed recorded in Liber 1053, Pages 661 thru 704, Leelanau Co u n t y Records, 
designated as Leelanau County Condominium Subdivision Plan No. 157, together with rights in general 
common elements and limited common elements as set forth in the above referenced Master Deed and 
as described in Act 59 of Public Acts of 1978, as amended, formerly known as part of Unit 7, Rivertown 
Leland Condominium, a condominium, according to the Master Deed recorded in Liber 1053, Pages 308 
thru 377, Leelanau County Records, and designated as Leelanau County Condominium Subdivision 
Plan No. 156, together with rights in general common elements and limited common elements as set 
forth in the above referenced Master Deed and as described in Act 59 of Public Acts of 1978, as 
amended; 

Tax ID#’s 
45-009-800-001-00, 45-009-800-002-00, 45-009-800-003-00, 45-009-800-004-00, 45-009-800-006-00, 
45-009-800-901-00, 45-009-800-902-00, 45-009-800-903-00, 45-009-800-904-00, part of 45-009-800-
007-00, 45-009-810-003-00, 45-009-810-004-00, 45-009-810-005-00, 45-009-810-006-00, 45-009-810-
007-00, 45-009-810-008-00, 45-009-810-009-00, 45-009-810-010-00, 45-009-810-011-00, 45-009-810-
012-00, and 45-009-810-013-00. 

BUT EXPRESSLY EXCLUDING, Unit 5, Rivertown Leland Condominium, a condominium, 
according to the Master Deed recorded in Liber 1053, Pages 308 thru 377, Leelanau County Records; 

AND ALSO EXCLUDING all land lying Easterly of Grand Avenue, and expressly excluding Units 1 
and 2 (also known as Units 7l and 7m), within Rivertown Cottages Condominium, a condominium, 
according to the Master Deed recorded in Liber 1053, Pages 661 thru 704, Leelanau County Records, 
designated as Leelanau County Condominium Subdivision Plan No. 157. 

Tax ID#’s 
45-009-800-005-00, 45-009-810-001-00, and 45-009-810-002-00. 

Page 23 of 40



Exhibit B
Former Leelanau County Government Complex ‐ Leland  

Estimated Tax Capture Reimbursement Schedule

Tax Year (Previous Winter plus Current Summer) 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 2022 2023 2024 2025 2026 2027 2028 2029 2030

Initial Taxable Value (2008) $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0
Land and Home Values $0 $800,000 $1,000,000 $4,849,240 $7,617,262 $9,196,390 $9,472,282 $11,189,313 $11,524,993 $13,390,867 $13,792,593 $13,792,593 $13,792,593 $13,792,593 $13,792,593
Taxable Value $0 $400,000 $500,000 $2,424,620 $3,808,631 $4,598,195 $4,736,141 $5,594,657 $5,762,497 $6,695,434 $6,896,297 $6,896,297 $6,896,297 $6,896,297 $6,896,297

Non Homestead Value $0 $400,000 $500,000 $312,500 $187,500 $125,000 $125,000 $62,500 $62,500 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0
Homestead Value $0 $0 $0 $2,112,120 $3,621,131 $4,473,195 $4,611,141 $5,532,157 $5,699,997 $6,695,434 $6,896,297 $6,896,297 $6,896,297 $6,896,297 $6,896,297

Non‐Homestead Millage 27.4212 27.4212 27.4212 27.4212 27.4212 27.4212 27.4212 27.4212 27.4212 27.4212 27.4212 27.4212 27.4212 27.4212 27.4212
Homestead Millage 16.5199 16.5199 16.5199 16.5199 16.5199 16.5199 16.5199 16.5199 16.5199 16.5199 16.5199 16.5199 16.5199 16.5199 16.5199

Potential Maximum Annual TIF Revenue (Presumes 100% Non‐Homestead Residence) $0 $10,968 $13,711 $66,485.99 $104,437.23 $126,088 $129,870.67 $153,412 $158,015 $183,597 $189,105 $189,105 $189,105 $189,105 $189,105

LESS MDEQ Obligation $0 $0 $0 ($42,953.28) ($42,953.28) ($42,953.28) ($42,953.28) ($42,953.28) ($68,080.05) ($102,984.55) $0 $0
MDEQ Loan Remaining $385,831.00 $385,831.00 $385,831.00 $342,877.72 $299,924.44 $256,971.16 $214,017.88 $171,064.60 $102,984.55 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0

$0 $0 $0 $0 $0 ($27,329) ($86,917) ($110,459) ($89,935)
$314,640.00 $314,640.00 $314,640.00 $314,640.00 $314,640.00 $287,310.83 $200,393.44 $89,934.52 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00

(10,968)$               (13,711)$              (23,532.71)$       (61,483.95)$         (55,805.57)$     

$165,501.31 $154,532.83 $140,822.23 $117,289.52 $55,805.57 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00

$0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $80,612.27 $189,104.73 $189,104.73 $189,104.73 $189,104.73 $189,104.73

LESS USEPA BCRLF Payment
USEPA BCRLF Loan Remaining (Less 20% Match)

Additional Eligible Activities Payment with Available Non‐Homestead Tax Revenues (Developer Match)

Additional Eligible Activities Remaining Balance

Supplemental USEPA BCRLF Payment (As Available through Non‐Homestead TIF Revenue) 

Notes:
1. Build‐out schedule and investment projections provided by Courthouse Redevelopment Group, LLC.
2. Presumes 100% of homes/parcels will be taxed at Non‐Homestead rate; this schedule may be adjusted depending upon properties that in‐fact are taxed at the Homestead rate
3. LCBRA 20% match of $78,600 of which half will be paid by Courthouse Redevelopment Group, LLC up to $40,000 maximum.

5. In accordance with the Brownfield Plan should incremental tax revenue remain available after loan service and reimbursement of eligble activities, such increment will be placed into the LSRRF.
6. Available for Potential LSRRF not to exceed 5 full years and not to exceed $292,886 of School TIF

4. Reimbursement Schedule may be amended in the future to reimburse the 20% match once the final cleanup costs have been established and the build‐out occurs including the number of homestead and non‐homestead
properties built. 

Page 24 of 40



 
LEELANAU COUNTY BROWNFIELD REDEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY 

(LCBRA) 
 

Policy on TIF Collection and Disbursal: 
 
 

The Owner and/or Developer of a brownfield site shall pay all real and personal property taxes levied on those 
portions of the Development that are subject to such taxes on or before the date said taxes become subject to 
interest or penalty.  
 
Tax Increment Financing (TIF) shall be collected for a brownfield site as follows: 
 

a) After summer tax bills are released, and after winter tax bills are released, the County Treasurer, or 
designee, shall submit a written request to the local taxing jurisdiction requesting collection and 
release of TIF funds to the County Treasurer. 

 
b) The County Treasurer shall verify funds collected and transfer said funds to the LCBRA account. 

 
c) The County Treasurer shall provide a brief summary to the LCBRA of collected, and non-collected 

funds. 
 
To the extent captured revenues from Tax Increment Financing (TIF) are available in the LCBRA account, 
reimbursement for Eligible Activities for a brownfield site shall be prioritized as follows: 
 

a) First, to be applied to any amounts loaned to Owner and/or Developer under a Brownfield 
Redevelopment Loan Agreement between the Owner and/or Developer and the LCBRA, and/or, to any 
loan received from the Michigan Department of Environmental Quality (MDEQ), including a 
reasonable reserve for future payments to assure availability of funds.  
 

b) Second, LCBRA administrative/operating and accounting costs and other eligible activities as incurred 
by the LCBRA, as allowed by law. 
 

c) Third, to be applied to any amounts properly submitted by the Owner and/or Developer for Eligible 
Activity expenses, provided that the Owner and/or Developer is in compliance with the applicable 
agreements and instruments relating to the project.  

 
The Owner and/or Developer shall keep all taxes and other accounts current, in order to be eligible for TIF 
reimbursement. 
 
The LCBRA review and approval process for TIF Disbursement will be as follows: 
 

April of each year – Review of requests. 
May of each year – Consider TIF Disbursal 
 
October of each year – Review of requests. 
November of each year – Consider TIF Disbursal 

 

Page 25 of 40



The above review and disbursal meetings will be held at a Regular scheduled LCBRA meeting. 
In the event a meeting is cancelled or all materials for the request are not available, they will be 
reviewed at the next Regular scheduled meeting. Requests will NOT be considered for projects 
that have unpaid taxes. 
 
Under no circumstances will TIF reimbursement be made from the Delinquent Tax Fund. 
 
Approved September 21, 2010 by the Leelanau County Brownfield Redevelopment Authority 
Approved revisions to policy by the LCBRA on 10-20-15 to update named department of the State of 
Michigan – Michigan Department of Natural Resources and Environment (MDNRE) to Michigan 
Department of Environmental Quality (MDEQ); update the “owner” to include the “developer”; and to 
update the prioritization of TIF disbursement. 

Page 26 of 40



 

 

BROWNFIELD REDEVELOPMENT PROJECT REPORTING REQUIREMENTS 

  

Pursuant to Michigan’s Public Act 381 of 1996 (the Brownfield Redevelopment Financing Act), each owner/
developer whose project(s) is supported by an active Brownfield Plan is required to report certain infor-
mation to the local Brownfield Redevelopment Authority.  Each Brownfield Redevelopment Authority is re-
quired to compile this data and report it each year to the State of Michigan.  

Project Information: 

Brownfield Redevelopment Project Name: 

__________________________________________ 

Brownfield Redevelopment Project Address: 

__________________________________________ 

__________________________________________ 

__________________________________________ 

 

Developer/Owner Name: 

_______________________________________ 

Developer/Owner Address: 

_______________________________________ 

_______________________________________ 

_______________________________________ 

Owner/Developer Reporting Requirements: 
 

1. Amount of actual capital investment made for the project ($):___________________ 
 

2. Number of Residential units constructed or rehabilitated for the project (#):_______ 
 

3. The amount, by square foot, of new or rehabilitated residential, retail, commercial, or 
industrial space for the project (sq.ft.):_________________________ 

 

4. The number of jobs created at the project (#):______________________ 

Update on Project Status and/or Changes to Brownfield Project: 

______________________________________________________________________________________

______________________________________________________________________________________ 

Please submit form to: 

Leelanau County Brownfield Redevelopment Authority 
Attention: Ms. Trudy Galla, AICP, Director 
8527 E. Government Center Dr., Suite 108 
Suttons Bay, MI 49682 

231-256-9812 (phone)   Please Submit Form by June 30th. 

231-256-0174 (fax) 
tgalla@co.leelanau.mi.us 

Page 27 of 40



Page 28 of 40



Page 29 of 40



Page 30 of 40



Page 31 of 40



Page 32 of 40



Page 33 of 40



Page 34 of 40



Page 35 of 40



Page 36 of 40



Page 37 of 40



Page 38 of 40



Page 39 of 40



Page 40 of 40


	Blank Page



